REQUEST FOR APPLICATION EDUCATORS IN RESIDENCE (EIR)



State Systemic Improvement Plan (SSIP) Literacy Coordinator (K-8)

Submission Due Date: March 25, 2024

Table of Contents

SECTION 1. GENERAL INFORMATION	4
1.1 Mississippi Board of Education Program Purpose and Goals	4
1.2 Position and Salary Offered	5
1.3 Eligibility Requirements/Criteria	5
1.4 Qualifications Required	5
1.5 Program Reports and Evaluation Error! Bookmark not	: defined. 6
1.6 Applicant Conditions	6
1.7 Tentative Timeline of Activities	7
1.8 Application Details	8
1.8.1 Part I - Application	8
1.8.2 Part II – Resume	8
1.8.3 Part III - Certifications and Licenses	8
1.8.4 Part IV – References	8
1.8.5 Part V – Interviews (Phase III)	8
1.8.6 Part VI – District/Entity Commitment	8
1.8.7 Part VII - Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)	8
SECTION 2. APPLICATION REVIEW AND SELECTION PROCESS	9
2.1 Phase I – Review of Application Components	9
2.2 Phase II – Review and Scoring	9
2.3 Phase III – Interview	9
2.4 Phase IV – MOU	9
SECTION 3. SELECTION CRITERIA – 100 POINTS	9
SECTION 4. REQUEST FOR INFORMATION	10
SECTION 5. SUBMISSION AND DELIVERY OF APPLICATIONS	11
5.1 Risk of Delivery	11
SECTION 6. RESTRICTIONS ON COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE OFFICE OF PROCUREMENT STAFF	12
SECTION 7. CONDITIONS OF SOLICITATION	12
SECTION 8. ACCEPTANCE OF APPLICATIONS	13

SECTION 9. REJECTION OF APPLICATIONS	13
SECTION 10. DISPOSITION OF APPLICATIONS	13
SECTION 11. PROTEST/COMPLAINT POLICY	13
SECTION 12. CONFLICT OF INTEREST	14
SECTION 13. APPLICATION FORMATTING AND SUBMISSION FORMS	14
13.1 Formatting Directions	14
SECTION 14. REQUIRED ELEMENTS CHECKLIST	14
FORM 1 – COVER PAGE	16
FORM 2 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE FORM	17
SUPPLEMENTAL FORM A	18
DISTRICT/ENTITY COLLABORATION	18
FORM 3 - ASSURANCES	21
FORM 4 - STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS	23
FORM 5 - ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF AMENDMENTS	26
FORM 6 – VERIFICATION OF UEI	27
BUDGET FORMS	28
GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS	28
BUDGET SUMMARY	28
RUDGET NARRATIVE	29

SECTION 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 Mississippi Board of Education Program Purpose and Goals

The Mississippi Department of Education (MDE), Office of Special Education is seeking competitive Request for Applications (RFA) from qualified applicants for an Educator in Residence (EIR), Grades <u>K-8 State Systemic Improvement Plan (SSIP) Literacy Coordinator</u>. The coordinator will provide services for the Mississippi Department of Education to implement the Literacy-Based Promotion Act and the SSIP. Most students with disabilities in grades K-8 receive reading instruction in the general education classroom, thus, making it vital that the special and general education teachers collaborate. Because of this, the solicitation will serve both the general and special education population. The Program's goals are to provide successful services is to work with the MDE, Office of Special Education staff to prioritize, schedule, organize, and provide technical assistance to general and special education teachers and administrators, to ensure students receive evidence-based literacy instruction. This will ensure that students with disabilities receive reading instruction of the grade level curriculum to meet the standards. Lastly, it will provide SSIP literacy coaches, general and special education teachers the tools needed to engage and educate all struggling readers.

The Office of Special Education has developed a State Systemic Improvement Plan (SSIP) that is clearly aligned to the goals referenced above. This comprehensive, multi-year plan is based on high expectations for students with disabilities and is focused on building the capacity of local districts to implement and scale-up evidence-based practices in reading with a focus on improving third grade reading proficiency. The goal is to ensure all students are proficient and showing growth in all assessed areas and to ensure that every school has effective teachers and leaders. The Office of Special Education SSIP is aligned to the MDE strategic goals. The initiative focuses on building the capacity of participating districts to implement and scale-up evidence-based practices for special education teachers and general education teachers supporting students with disabilities.

Scope of Work: State Systemic Improvement Plan (SSIP) Literacy Coordinator (K-8)

- work with the MDE, Office of Special Education staff to prioritize, schedule, organize, and to provide technical assistance to teachers and administrators on evidence-based literacy strategies such as the Science of Reading and High Quality Instructional Materials;
- provide appropriate coaching and professional development services that address reading deficiencies in schools to ensure that there is cohesive, sustained, intensive and classroom-focused professional development and coaching that is rigorous, engaging, and aligned to the Mississippi College and Career-Readiness Standards;
- develop open, professional, and collaborative work relationships with SSIP regional coordinators, SSIP literacy coaches, district-level school personnel, school-based literacy coaches, principals, and teachers;
- effectively identify the literacy and instructional needs of assigned school and teachers to prioritize, schedule, organize, and provide technical assistance to teachers to increase grade-level reading outcomes for students by the end of 3rd & 8th grades;
- assist SSIP regional coordinators, content specialists, and literacy coaches with the implementation of new and innovative resources to improve literacy instruction for students with disabilities grades K-8;
- coordinate literacy team monthly meetings
- collect, analyze, and present assessment and literacy data; leverages on expertise and resourceful resources within the Literacy Team for additional review and analysis

- analyze and interpret data to inform instructional programs;
- extensive travel throughout the State;
- work in Microsoft Office
- uphold the confidentiality of all students, school, district, and State-level data.

1.2 Position and Salary Offered

The Applicant must provide an application and all required documents in a sealed envelope for the position described below.

State Systemic Improvement Plan Literacy Coordinator (K-8) with a salary of \$75,000 plus fringe benefits and travel.

1.3 Eligibility Requirements/Criteria

This solicitation outlines information required to submit a response to this RFA. Please be aware that changes to previous requirements and/or eligibility solicited may have been made. The individual selected for this position may be requested to provide transcripts and must meet the requirements for Eligibility, the Application Review, and Selection Process as described below.

1.4 Qualifications Required

Minimum Qualifications

Applicants must meet the minimum qualifications below in order for the application to advance to the evaluation process.

Experience/Years

The selected individual for the Special Education SSIP Literacy Coordinator (K-8) position must provide documentation (**via resume**) of the following criteria:

- Minimum of five (5) years teaching experience in K-8 or experience in the area of reading;
- At least five (5) years of experience facilitating learning or delivering professional development specific to literacy instruction at the district and State levels;
- At least three (3) years of experience in literacy coaching;
- Minimum of three (3) years working with students with disabilities.
- experience reviewing and providing professional development on creating Individualized Education Programs;
- experience in a supervisory role;
- experience providing professional development specific to literacy instruction;
- experience working with Microsoft Office.

Education/Years

- Bachelor's degree in Elementary, Secondary, or Special Education and four (4) years of experience teaching reading **-OR-**
- Master's degree in Elementary, Secondary, or Special Education and three (3) years of experience teaching in reading/literacy or related field.

License/Certification

• Valid Mississippi Educator Professional License

Desired Qualifications

Experience/Years

- Experience writing and progress monitoring of Federal grants.
- Experience analyzing and interpreting data to inform instructional programs.
- experience completing and submitting documentation to the Office of Special Education Programs (OSEP) in a timely manner;
- Experience mentoring, coaching, and providing resources to State Systemic Improvement Plan Regional Coordinators and Literacy Coaches.

Education/Years

- Experience analyzing and using school, district, and State student achievement data for instructional decision-making;
- Specialist Degree in Elementary, Secondary, Special Education, or Educational Leadership.

The Applicant must also provide sufficient detail to demonstrate significant experience and is knowledgeable in working with programs similar to scope of this solicitation. The qualifications below will be weighted and scored by a committee of evaluators. For each client, please detail in the application, resume, and/or supporting documents the following:

- Ability to facilitate learning or delivering professional development;
- Ability to mentor, coach, and provide feedback about instruction to general and special education teachers; and
- Experience leading others in a collaborative process (e.g., professional learning communities, school or district-level meetings).

1.5 Program Reports and Evaluation

- Submit monthly coaching reports to MDE;
- Submit travel documents as required by MDE deadlines;
- Participate in mid-year and end-of-year performance evaluations:
- Submit documentation in the SPP/APR.

1.6 Applicant Conditions

- Applicants shall acknowledge all funds and awards are subject to appropriations by the state/federal government and the MDE will not be liable for compensation of any award terminated prior to services beginning.
- Applicants that previously received an EIR position must be in good standing and have an acceptable performance evaluation with MDE to receive a grant award through the solicitation. If an Applicant is not in good standing, then their application will not proceed to the review process.

- Applicant shall maintain confidentiality of all educational records as required under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), 20 U.S.C. 1232(g), and all personnel records and/or other confidential or privileged agency information as required under MDE policies and procedures and applicable state and federal laws.
- Applicant shall adhere to all federal and state laws, including but not limited to the American
 with Disabilities Act, the Rehabilitations Act and any other requirements that may affect the
 performance of the obligations under this agreement.
- Applicant shall adhere to the requirements of The Mississippi Code of Ethics, Standards of Conduct as identified by the Mississippi Board of Education in its Rules, Board Policy No. 1717 and the Ethical Policies (Section 11.0) of the MDE Policies and Procedures Manual.
- Applicant shall perform all assigned duties and responsibilities, as required by MDE, to the satisfaction of the MDE.
- An Applicant may submit an amended application before the application submission deadline. Such amended applications shall be a complete replacement for a previously submitted application and shall be clearly identified as such. The MDE shall not merge, collate, or assemble application materials.
- Prior to the application submission deadline, a submitted application may be withdrawn by submitting a written request for its withdrawal to the MDE, signed by the Applicant.

1.7 Tentative Timeline of Activities

A recommendation to the SBE for an approval of awards is anticipated for Applicants based on applications submitted and accepted, and an evaluation and selection process. All new Subgrantees approved for funding by the SBE at that time must attend subsequent mandatory meetings for all Subgrantees. An award or non-award letter will be sent to Applicants confirming the SBE's action. The letter will include specific information on meeting dates and times, if applicable.

Important tentative dates and activities related to this solicitation are listed below.

Important Dates	Activity
February 16, 2024	RFA Issued –
February 23, 2024	Email and Post to MDE Website/Newspaper
March 6, 2024	Deadline for submitting questions
March 11, 2024	Overtions will be posted to the MDE website
March 11, 2024	Questions will be posted to the MDE website
March 25, 2024	Applications deadline by 2:00 PM CST
April 1-2, 2024	Review of applications
June 20, 2024	State Board of Education approval

July 5, 2024	Notification of awards and non-awards				

1.8 Application Details

The application will consist of seven parts: Part I – Application; Part II – Resume; Part III – Certifications/Licenses; Part IV – References; Part V – Interview; Part VI – District Commitment/Assurances. Part VII – Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

1.8.1 Part I - Application

The application shall serve as the cover page. The Applicant must complete the application in response to the solicitation.

1.8.2 Part II – Resume

Applicant must provide detailed background information which describes relevant job experiences and education for the position specified above.

1.8.3 Part III - Certifications and Licenses

Attach verification to document the Applicant's professional authority.

1.8.4 Part IV - References

Must include the name, profession, email and the telephone number of at least three (3) professional contacts directly related to the position applied.

1.8.5 Part V – Interviews (Phase III)

The Applicant will be contacted via email upon meeting the established cut score.

1.8.6 Part VI – District/Entity Commitment

The Applicant must obtain a District/Entity approval to collaborate with the Mississippi Department of Education by the submission deadline date of the application. If a District/Entity will not comply by the submission deadline date, the Applicant will be disqualified and the application submitted will not be considered for an award.

1.8.7 Part VII - Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

The District/Entity must agree to an MOU on behalf of the Applicant in order to collaborate with the Mississippi Department of Education by the submission deadline date specified by the MDE. If a District/Entity will not comply by the submission deadline date established by the MDE, the Applicant will be disqualified and the application submitted will not be considered for an award.

SECTION 2. APPLICATION REVIEW AND SELECTION PROCESS

The Mississippi Department of Education will select an Applicant and consider an award based on the following:

2.1 Phase I – Review of Application Components

A committee made up of Division staff and authorized by the MDE will review applications and supporting documents to determine if all formatting and submission requirements are met. Each application will be reviewed using the required elements checklist. Candidates who have complete application packets will advance to Phase II – Review and Scoring.

If any application fails to meet the established Required Elements Checklist or minimum qualifications, the application will be disqualified. Please see Supplemental Form A for the Required Elements Checklist. Applicants who fail to meet the "Required Elements" may reapply for an award at a future date.

2.2 Phase II – Review and Scoring

A review committee made up of Division staff and/or external members with relevant experience will review and score each application based on the summation of the application and supporting documents. The review committee will be responsible for evaluating all applications advancing from Phase I. The review committee will rank the applications from highest to lowest score and Applicants meeting the **minimum cut score of 55** will advance to Phase III - Interview.

2.3 Phase III – Interview

Applicants selected for an interview shall be notified via email. Interview will be provided face-to-face or via technology (e.g., TEAMS, ZOOM, etc.) Applicants unable to commit to an initial interview, without an offer to reschedule at a later date, shall not be considered for an award. The Mississippi Department of Education may elect not to reschedule interview times and dates.

After the review and interview process, Applicants that were not recommended to the SBE for funding may receive copies of the readers' comments and feedback. Applicants must submit a Public Records Request to obtain a copy of readers' comments and feedback.

2.4 Phase IV – MOU

After the Notice of Intent to Award, the MDE will notify the District/Entity to complete a Memorandum of Understanding as the Fiscal Agent.

Successful Subgrantees may use grant funds for allowable costs only during the grant award period. Any costs occurring outside the grant award period are solely the responsibility of the Subgrantee and will not be reimbursed by the MDE.

SECTION 3. SELECTION CRITERIA – 100 POINTS

Applicants will show their ability to perform services as reflected through training, education, general experience, specific experience providing the required services, and the qualifications and

abilities of personnel proposed to be assigned to perform the services.

An application must receive a minimum of **80 points** before the Mississippi Department of Education can consider funding. The MDE will allocate funding based upon the combined scores for Phase II and III and will continue funding to subsequent applications until funding is exhausted.

- **1. Application** (Weight/Value 35%) shall provide information to encompass the qualifications and scope of work.
- **2. Resume and References** (Weight/Value 20%) must provide clear and concise information to include work experience that aligns and addresses the required scope of work.
- 3. **Certifications/License** (Weight/Value 10 %) Any additional relevant information.
- 4. **Interview** (35% points) In this phase of the evaluation process, the evaluation committee will seek to determine from the finalists whose application is the most advantageous to the MDE and the State.
 - 1. Record of Past Performance of Similar Work (Experience and Qualifications) –
 - 2. Answers based on project achievement questions
 - 3. Demonstrate the ability to design professional development specific to evidence-based literacy instruction.

At the MDE's discretion, finalists may be required to answer questions or make a presentation to the evaluation committee. If scheduled, interviews shall be held in Jackson, Mississippi or virtual (the MDE discretion), to allow the evaluation committee the opportunity to conduct the interview and to confirm/clarify information provided in the submitted applications.

Upon completion of the Analysis Phase, the evaluation committee will review, score, and validate rubrics for the committee's average score to determine if a finalist will move to the Finalist Phase. If interviews are **not** included within this solicitation, the finalist with the highest-ranking score(s) will be the Awarded Applicant(s) after the Analysis Phase.

SECTION 4. REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Written questions concerning the RFA shall be **emailed** to: contact email **gkoestler@mdek12.org**.

The deadline for submitting written questions by email is **Wednesday**, **March 6**, **2024**, **at 5:00 PM (CST)**. Copies of all questions and responses submitted will be posted to MDE's website www.mdek12.org under the *Public Notices section/Request for Applications*, *Qualifications*, and *Proposals* and will be available to the general public on **Monday**, **March 11**, **2024**. **No individual responses will be granted**.

Applicants shall acknowledge receipt of any amendment to the solicitation by signing and returning the amendment with the application. The acknowledgement must be received by the MDE by the time and at the place specified for receipt of applications.

SECTION 5. SUBMISSION AND DELIVERY OF APPLICATIONS

A signed application packet shall be submitted electronically in a PDF format via <u>RFXS</u> no later than **Monday**, **March 25**, **2024**, **by 2:00 p.m. Central Standard Time (CST)**. The complete application including all attachments shall be submitted in a searchable Microsoft Office® format, preferably in Word® or Portable Document Format (PDF) only. "<u>Links</u>" received via the <u>RFXS</u> will not be opened and the email will be rejected without further consideration for an award.

Applicants shall allow at least **72 hours** in advance of the due date to consider unforeseen technical issues. Applications received after the time designated in the solicitation shall be considered late and shall not be considered for an award.

Please NOTE: The email <u>subject line and electronic document</u> shall identify the <u>name of the solicitation and the name of the entity/individual submitting the response</u>. Any deviation from these instructions may result in disqualification of the response application and shall not be considered for an award.

Example Format for Subject Line: 21st Century Program by John Blue LLC (DO NOT UNDERSCORE OR INSERT SYMBOLS)

OR

Shipping instructions are provided below:

An original signed application packet with number (1) copies shall be shipped/mailed and received in a sealed envelope at the MDE no later than Monday, March 25, 2024, by 2:00 PM Central Standard Time (CST).

Please NOTE: The <u>return address label</u> must be visible on the outside of the sealed shipping envelope and shall include the <u>name of the entity/individual submitting the response</u>. Any deviation from these instructions may result in disqualification of the response application and shall not be considered for an award.

Ship To:

MONIQUE CORLEY
Office of Procurement
The Mississippi Department of Education
State Systemic Improvement Plan (SSIP) Literacy Coordinator (K-8)
359 North West Street
Jackson, Mississippi 39201

5.1 Risk of Delivery

Timely submission of the application package is the sole responsibility of the Applicant. It is suggested that if the application is shipped to the MDE, it should be tracked to require an MDE mailroom staff signature and request a return receipt/notice with signature. Any application shipped or mailed MUST be verified, date and time stamped, and recorded by an MDE mailroom staff. The time and date of the receipt will be indicated on the sealed application envelope or package by the MDE mailroom staff. The only acceptable evidence to establish the time of receipt

at the MDE will be identified by the time and date stamp of the MDE mailroom staff on the application wrapper or other documentary evidence of receipt used by the mailroom.

Packages that are received at the MDE in person by the applicant or a representative will NOT be opened. Packages received at the MDE by shipping/mail without the appropriate acceptance by the MDE mailroom staff or is received and recorded AFTER the submission deadline will NOT be considered for an award.

The MDE will not be responsible for delivery delays or lost packets. All risk of late arrival due to unanticipated delays – whether delivered by shipping or electronic method – is entirely on the Applicant. All Applicants are urged to take the possibility of delay into account when submitting the application and submit the packet electronically via <u>RFXS</u>. **Applicants are encouraged to submit <u>ONE</u> response to prevent duplication. Upon submission of the response a confirmation receipt shall be provided as assurance that the Office of Procurement received the response packet.** The Applicant shall be notified if their application was rejected and the reason for such rejection after the applicable State Board of Education session.

Supplemental or revised application information, either from the Applicant or another source, will not be accepted. An application package must contain every element intending to be submitted. Applicants are encouraged to carefully review the procedures for submitting their materials. No changes or additions to an application will be accepted after the deadline.

SECTION 6. RESTRICTIONS ON COMMUNICATIONS

At no time shall any Applicant contact or attempt to contact any MDE staff regarding this solicitation. All correspondence shall be sent via email to the assigned contact person within the time specified in the Request for Information section. Should it be determined that any Applicant has attempted to communicate or has communicated with any unauthorized MDE staff regarding this solicitation, the MDE at its discretion, may disqualify the Applicant from submitting an application in response to the SOLICITATION.

SECTION 7. CONDITIONS OF SOLICITATION

The MDE reserves the right to accept, reject, or negotiate submitted applications based on eligibility. The final decision to award a grant rests solely with the MDE.

The Applicant should note the following:

- a. The MDE will not be liable for any cost associated with the preparation of applications incurred by the Applicant.
- b. The selection of an Applicant is contingent upon eligibility requirements; approval of the application by selected MDE reviewers, approved budget and the State Board of Education approval, if required.
- c. An EIR is prohibited from transferring services under this solicitation and award.

Applicants will be required to assume full responsibility for meeting all required elements stated in the solicitation.

SECTION 8. ACCEPTANCE OF APPLICATIONS

The Mississippi Department of Education (MDE) reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to waive minor irregularities in applications. A minor irregularity is a variation of the solicitation that does not affect the application or the competitiveness, give one party an advantage or benefit over other parties, or adversely impacts the interest of the MDE.

SECTION 9. REJECTION OF APPLICATIONS

Applications that do not conform to the required elements of this solicitation will be rejected by the Mississippi Department of Education. Applications will be rejected for reasons that include the following:

- The application is received late. Late application packets will be maintained unopened in the procurement file.
- The application contains unauthorized amendments to the requirements outlined in the solicitation.
- The application is incomplete or contains irregularities that make the application indefinite or ambiguous.
- The application contains misleading signatures, statements, or references.
- Additions, modifications, alterations, or perceived improvements to any portion of the solicitation shall be considered non-responsive and will not be evaluated.
- Applications that do not meet and conform to all required elements as outlined in *Supplemental Form A and Required Elements Checklist*.
- The Applicant/entity has previously been cited with major and/or significant deficiencies by the MDE in one or more programs or included on the debarment list.
- Required forms and attachments are not included in the application packet.
- The Applicant is determined to be non-responsive.
- The Applicant did not perform prior services in a proper, workmanlike, and/or dignified manner.
- The Format and Procedure outlined in the Submission and Delivery of Applications Section was not followed.
- The application packet was attached as a "link" in response to the solicitation.
- In person delivery of application.

SECTION 10. DISPOSITION OF APPLICATIONS

All applications become the property of the State of Mississippi.

SECTION 11. PROTEST/COMPLAINT POLICY

An award complaint must be submitted in writing to the Mississippi Department of Education.

The mailing address is:

ATTN: Office of the Superintendent

Mississippi Department of Education 359 North West Street Jackson, Mississippi 39201

SECTION 12. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Each Subgrantee must maintain a written conflict of interest policy.

SECTION 13. APPLICATION FORMATTING AND SUBMISSION FORMS

Developed by the MDE, this application information package contains all the forms and instructions necessary to apply for a subgrant for **State Systemic Improvement Plan (SSIP) Literacy Coordinator (K-8).** Please review the enclosed materials and carefully follow the instructions for completing the subgrant application. Before submission, review the application requirements to ensure that all sections and documents are complete.

13.1 Formatting Directions

Applications must be completed and submitted utilizing the *Required Elements Checklist* described below in Section 14. The complete application including all attachments shall be submitted in a searchable Microsoft Office® format, preferably in Word® or Portable Document Format (PDF) only.

Applications submitted must include the following components in the following order. Failure to submit the required completed forms, with original signatures, will result in the rejection of the application. The narrative portions of the application should not exceed one additional page.

SECTION 14. REQUIRED ELEMENTS CHECKLIST

Please be advised that applications that fail to contain all the required elements listed below will not be given to reviewers. Applicants who submit incomplete applications may reapply for a future grant, if funding is available.

Applicants should submit applications using the following parameters:

- The complete application including all attachments shall be submitted in a searchable Microsoft Office® format, preferably in Word® or Portable Document Format (PDF) only.
- "Links" received to obtain a response via the RFXS will not be opened and the email will be rejected without further consideration for an award.
- **Duplicate submission** of an electronic or mailed response application will result in the **LAST submission** being considered as a modification to the original submission. The previous submissions will be rejected and will not be considered for the evaluation and award. **Any late duplicate copy will disqualify all submissions from the evaluation process for an award.**
- Applicants are encouraged to submit ONE response to prevent duplication. Upon submission of the response a confirmation receipt shall be provided as assurance that the Office of Procurement received the response packet.

APPLICANT REQUIRED ELEMENTS CHECKLIST:

- ✓ Signed Conflict of Interest (Form 2)—*Required Signature*
- ✓ Acknowledgement of Amendments (Form 5) *Required Signatures*
- ✓ <u>Application</u>—Required Signature
- ✓ Resume
- ✓ Certification and Licenses
- ✓ References

Applicants should ensure that all guidelines and requirements are met before submitting applications. Please note that the MDE staff will not grant permission to Applicants to change the criteria established in the application. This includes extending the date and time applications are due. Failure to submit all required elements shall result in the application packet being eliminated from any further consideration for this solicitation.

END OF THIS PAGE

FORM 1 – COVER PAGE

Fund Year FY25, FY26, FY27, FY28, and FY29

EDUCATOR IN RESIDENCE APPLICATION PACKAGE

Name: Applicant	Address:	City, State	:
Phone:	Other Phone:	Email:	
Name: District/Entity	Address:	City, State	:
Phone:	Contact Person:	E-mail:	
District/Entity UEI#	EIR To	tal Amount:	
REQUIRED SIGNATURES:			
Superintendent		Γ	Date
Applicant			Date
For MDE program office use only:	Mississippi Department of Ed	ucation Approval	
List name of 1st Level Approver			_
2 nd Level Approver			_
Grants Management Director (If funding with federal funds)			_
Executive Director			_
Approval Date:			_

FORM 2 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE FORM

Mississippi Department of Education

Each Applicant must disclose any personal, business, or volunteer affiliations that may give rise to a real or apparent conflict of interest to provide these services. The purpose of this form is to help MDE identify the actual or potential conflict and ensure avoidance where necessary. Please complete and sign the form below as it relates to a conflict of interest within the program activities specified in the solicitation.

agree		forth above is true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I any information that might indicate this disclosure is inaccurate,
	0	iflict of interest(s) to report. Please describe any relationships, you hold (volunteer or otherwise), or circumstances that you to a conflict of interest:
	I have the following con	flict of interest(s) to nament Places describe any relationshing
	I have no conflict of inter	rest to report.

SUPPLEMENTAL FORM A

The Applicant **mus**t include and obtain the District/Entity signature on **all** required documents listed on the Supplemental Form A to be considered for an award.

DISTRICT/ENTITIY REQUIRED ELEMENTS CHECKLIST:

- ✓ Signed Cover Page (Form 1) *Required Signatures*
- ✓ Signed Assurances (Form 3) *Required Signature*
- ✓ Signed Standard Terms and Conditions (Form 4) Required Signatures
- ✓ Acknowledgement of Amendments (Form 5) Required Signatures
- ✓ Budget Forms pre-filled out by MDE-do not change or alter the forms; district should complete the indirect cost and total lines)- *Required*
- ✓ Verification of the registration of the active Unique Entity ID (UEI) must be submitted with the application (e.g., www.sam.gov correspondence indicating the status and expiration date, UEI letter, etc.) (Federal funds only, delete for State funds)

Please note that the MDE staff will not grant permission to Applicants or entities to change the criteria established in the application. <u>This includes extending the date and time all</u> forms are due.

DISTRICT/ENTITY COLLABORATION

GRANT PERIOD /AWARD AMOUNTS

Funds and awards are subject to appropriations by the state government. A subgrant for an Educator in Residency Project will be awarded in the amount of \$75,000. Funding to eligible Subgrantees is subject to State Board of Education approval. The Mississippi Department of Education reserves the right to negotiate grant award amounts with all Subgrantees pending appropriations.

The project will be awarded for a time period for up to five (5) years contingent upon the availability funds, and a performance evaluation and/or any other documented progress report.

Upon approval by the MDE State Board of Education, the Applicant will be notified of the award or non-award. The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), the grant award agreement, and any additional required documents will be prepared and forwarded to the District/Entity by the MDE for a review and signature.

USE OF FUNDS

The MDE Subgrantee award will be determined based on the number and positions of approved Applicants per district/entity. It is the intent of the MDE to award funding to districts/entities for the sole purpose of reimbursing the salary and fringe benefits of selected Applicants to serve as Educators-in-Residence (EIR). (See attached Budget Summary)

All expenditures must be consistent with applicable state and federal laws, regulations, and guidance. Subgrantees should be aware that funds must be used in a manner consistent with all requirements of the statute and must be used only to supplement, not supplant, any federal, state, local, or non-federal funds available to support activities.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF A FISCAL AGENT

The following are some of the expectations, roles, and responsibilities of a fiscal agent:

- 1. As the official Subgrantee, all awards must be adopted by the Local Board of Education for LEAs or the Board of Directors for non-LEAs.
- 2. Administer the subgrant from award to closeout in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.
- 3. Serve as the organizational representative and point-of-contact for all business management aspects of the award agreement.
- 4. Apply appropriate management controls using management systems, checklists, and records, including, but not limited to:
 - i. Internal Controls
 - a. Safeguard assets; ensure reliability of accounting data and subgrant terms and conditions.
 - ii. Operating Controls
 - a. Fiduciary procedural manuals; budgetary control.
 - iii. Accounting Controls
 - a. Implement controls to ensure reliability of recorded financial data;
 - b. Maintain appropriate level of transaction review and authorization;
 - c. Develop and implement proper procurement procedures and cash management procedures that are well defined; and
 - d. Develop procedures that facilitate timely review and audit of financial activity.
 - iv. Compliance Controls
 - a. Consider mechanisms to monitor and review compliance with subgrant terms (i.e., ensure grant funds are disbursed only to eligible Subgrantees);
 - b. Ensure **all** expenditures and disbursements are consistent with the objectives of the subgrant award, comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws, and regulations governing the program and use of funds.
 - v. Document Control System
 - a. Develop written documentation of adequate internal operating and accounting controls that demonstrate evidence of controls related to grant compliance.
- 5. Assemble appropriate staff resources and communicate all compliance requirements and resources of the subgrant.
- 6. Keep abreast of changes in policies, procedures, or requirements and continue to advise program staff of subgrant requirements.
- 7. Request any further "prior approvals" when identified.
- 8. Submit grant reimbursement requests no later than time period with liquidation by July 31, 2022.
 - i. Eligibility of Expenditures
 - a. Adhere to the list of eligible activities for which funds under the program may be spent, as well as allowable cost objectives in applicable cost principles; and
 - b. Ensure that transactions are made in a reasonable and prudent manner, are allowable and allocable, and avoid double charging and ensure that credits are applied appropriately.
- 9. Prepare necessary reports:
 - i. Source Documentation
 - a. Appropriately support transactions entered into the Subgrantee's system
 - b. Documentation tracks each subgrant transaction and supports the validity of financial data reported; and
 - c. Maintain separate funding lines for funds.

ii. Audit Trail

- a. The lowest level of detail the system should provide is documentation that supports all transactions (e.g., invoices, contracts, purchase orders);
- b. The overall recordkeeping system should be able to trace financial statement balances through the Subgrantee's general ledger, cash books, and other journals; and
- c. Amounts claimed on financial statements and reports accurately reflect the accounting books and records from which they were prepared.
- 10. Use feedback from site visits by the MDE to enhance the program, show organizational strength, and demonstrate commitment to the project.
- 11. Keep the MDE and the public aware and informed about grant project progress.
- 12. Evaluate the extent to which measurable project objectives are being met.
- 13. Liquidate all obligations incurred under the award within the set deadline.
- 14. Ensure and oversee the performance of final audits and resolution of findings.
- 15. Establish adequate system for records retention.

<u>FORM 3 - ASSURANCES</u> (Please read carefully before signing.)

The Subgrantee hereby assures that, in accordance with the statute, the school district/organization submitting this shall comply with the following:

Certain terms and conditions are required for receiving grants from the Mississippi Department of Education (MDE); therefore, the Subgrantee will agree to the items that follow.

- A. The Subgrantee shall be an equal opportunity employer and shall perform to all other applicable requirements; accordingly, the Subgrantee shall neither discriminate nor permit discrimination in its operation or employment practices against any person or group of persons on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, handicap, or sex in any manner prohibited by law. Further, the Subgrantee agrees to comply with the Civil Rights Acts of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001.
- B. The Subgrantee agrees that the MDE, or any of its duly authorized representatives, at any time during the term of this agreement, shall have access to, and the right to audit examine any pertinent books, documents, papers, and records of the Subgrantee related to the Subgrantee's charges and performance under this agreement. The Subgrantee shall keep such records for a period of five years after final payment under this agreement, unless the MDE authorizes their earlier disposition. The Subgrantee agrees to refund to the MDE any overpayments disclosed by any such audit. However, if any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other action involving the records has been started before the expiration of the five-year period, the records shall be retained until completion of the action and resolution of all issues that arise from it.
- C. The Subgrantee assures that it possesses legal authority to apply for and to receive funds under this agreement.
- D. The Subgrantee certifies they have not been barred from contracting or otherwise doing business with the State or Federal Governments.
- E. This agreement shall not be modified, altered, or changed except by mutual agreement by representative(s) of each party to this agreement, and must be confirmed in writing through MDE grant modification procedures.
- F. The Subgrantee shall perform all services as an independent Subgrantee and shall discharge all of its liabilities as such. No act performed or representation made, whether oral or written, by the Subgrantee with respect to third parties shall be binding on the MDE.
- G. The MDE, by written notice, may terminate the grant, in whole or in part, if funds supporting the grant are reduced or withdrawn. To the extent that the grant is for services, and if so terminated, the MDE shall be liable only for payment in accordance with payment provisions of the grant for services rendered prior to the effective date of termination. The MDE, by written notice, may terminate the application for nonperformance of the applicant at any time during the term of the program. The Applicant agrees that work, data, etc. created under the auspices of the program shall be turned over to the MDE upon such termination. The MDE, in whole or in part, may terminate the program for cause by written notification. Furthermore, the MDE and the Applicant may terminate the agreement, in whole or in part, upon mutual agreement. Either the

Mississippi Department of Education or the awardee may terminate this agreement at any time by giving written notice to the other party of such termination and specifying the effective date thereof. The Applicant shall be paid an amount which bears the same ratio to the total compensation as the services actually performed bear to the total services of the contractor covered by the agreement, less payments of compensation previously made.

- H. This agreement, and all matters or issues collateral to it, shall be governed by, and constructed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Mississippi.
- I. The Subgrantee shall not assign or sub-grant in whole or in part, its rights or obligations under this agreement without prior written consent of MDE. Any attempted assignments without said consent shall be void and of no effect.

I have **read** and **agree** to comply with the grant assurances in accordance with state and federal regulations requirements, and MDE policy and requirements pertaining to this program. I certify that the contents of this, if funded, are true and correct and funds will be implemented for the services described herein. **Signatures of the Superintendent, Executive Director, Agency Head, and/or Fiscal Agent on this page must match the signatures on the cover page. Failure to sign the above assurances will result in the rejection of the application.**

Superintendent	Date
Title of Authorized Person	
Subgrantee Name	

FORM 4 - STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of the MDE to proceed under this agreement is conditioned upon the appropriation of funds by the Mississippi State Legislature and the receipt of state and/or federal funds. If the funds anticipated for the continuing time fulfillment of the agreement are, at any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, either through the failure of the federal government to provide funds or of the State of Mississippi to appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material alteration of the program under which funds were provided or if funds are not otherwise available to the MDE, the MDE shall have the right upon ten (10) working days written notice to Contractor, to terminate this agreement without damage, penalty, cost or expenses to the [State] of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the notice of termination.

CHANGES

This agreement shall not be modified, altered or changed, except by mutual agreement by an authorized representative(s) of each party to this agreement, and must be confirmed in writing through MDE grant modification procedures.

INDEPENDENT SUBGRANTEE

The Subgrantee shall perform all services as an independent Subgrantee and shall discharge all of its liabilities as such. No act performed or representation made, whether oral or written, by Subgrantee with respect to third parties shall be binding on the MDE.

TERMINATION

The MDE, by written notice, may terminate this grant, in whole or in part, if funds supporting this grant are reduced or withdrawn. To the extent that this grant is for services, and if so terminated, the MDE shall be liable only for payment in accordance with payment provisions of this grant for services rendered prior to the effective date of termination.

The MDE, in whole or in part, may terminate this grant for cause by written notification. Furthermore, the MDE and the Subgrantee may terminate this grant, in whole or in part, upon mutual agreement.

Either the MDE or the Applicant/Subgrantee may terminate this agreement at any time by giving 30 days written notice to the other party of such termination and specifying the effective date thereof. The Applicant/Subgrantee shall be paid an amount which bears the same ratio to the total compensation as the services actually performed to the total services of the Applicant/Subgrantee covered by the agreement, less payments of compensation previously made.

ACCESS TO RECORDS

The Subgrantee agrees that the MDE, or any of its duly authorized representatives, at any time during the term of this agreement, shall have access to, and the right to audit and examine any pertinent books, documents, papers, and records of Applicant/Subgrantee related to Applicant/Subgrantee's charges and performance under this agreement. Such records shall be kept by Subgrantee for a period of five (5) years after final payment under this agreement, unless the MDE authorized their earlier disposition. Subgrantee agrees to refund to the MDE any overpayments disclosed by any such audit. However, if any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records has been started before the expiration of the 5-year period, the records shall be retained until completion of the action and resolution off all issues which arise from it.

LAWS

This agreement, and all matters or issues collateral to it, shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Mississippi.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

The Subgrantee assures that it possesses legal authority to apply for and receive funds under this agreement.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

The Subgrantee shall be an equal opportunity employer and shall perform to applicable requirements; accordingly, Subgrantee shall neither discriminate nor permit discrimination in its operations or employment practices against any person or group of persons on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, handicap or sex in any manner prohibited by law.

COPYRIGHTS

The Applicant/Subgrantee: (i) agrees that the MDE shall determine the disposition to title to and the rights under any copyright by Applicant/Subgrantee or employees on copyrightable material first produced or composed under this agreement; and, (ii) hereby grants to the MDE a royalty free, nonexclusive, irrevocable license to reproduce, translate, publish, use and dispose of, to authorize others to do so, all copyrighted or copyrightable work not first produced or composed by Subgrantee in the performance of this agreement, but which is incorporated in the material furnished under the agreement, provided that such license shall be only to the extent Subgrantee now has, or prior to the completion or full final settlements of agreement may acquire, the right to grant such license without becoming liable to pay compensation to other solely because of such grant.

Applicant/Subgrantee further agrees that all material produced and/or delivered under this grant will not, to the best of the Subgrantee's knowledge, infringe upon the copyright or any other proprietary rights of any third party. Should any aspect of the materials become, or in the Subgrantee's opinion be likely to become, the subject of an infringement claim or suite, the Subgrantee shall procure the rights to such material or replace or modify the material to make it non-infringing.

PERSONNEL

Subgrantee agrees that, at all times, the employees of Subgrantee furnishing or performing any of the services specified under this agreement shall do so in a proper, workmanlike and dignified manner.

SURRENDER OF EQUIPMENT

Applicant and MDE shall jointly conduct a closing inventory and Applicant shall replace or repair all equipment lost, damaged or destroyed to make up any deficiency between the opening and closing inventories. Applicant shall transfer all equipment per MDE's guidance and written instructions.

ASSIGNMENT

Subgrantee shall not assign or subgrant in whole or in part, its rights or obligations under this agreement without prior written consent of the MDE. Any attempted assignment without said consent shall be void and of no effect.

MISSISSIPPI ETHICS

It is the responsibility of the Applicant/Subgrantee to ensure compliance with the Mississippi Ethics Law in regard to any conflict of interest. A statement attesting to said compliance shall be on file by the Subgrantee.

I have **read** and **agree** to comply with the standard terms and conditions based on MDE policy and requirements pertaining to this program. I certify that the contents of this, if funded, will be followed for the implementation of the program services described herein. **Signatures of the Superintendent**, **Executive Director**, **Agency Head**, **and/or Fiscal Agent/Applicant on this page must match the signatures on the cover and application page. Failure to sign the above standard terms and conditions will result in the rejection of the application.**

Superintendent	Date
Title of Authorized Person	_
Subgrantee Name	_
Applicant	 Date

FORM 5 - ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF AMENDMENTS

<u>The Question-and-Answer amendment shall be signed, if issued.</u> The Question-and-Answer amendment will be posted on the MDE <u>website</u> under "Public Notice" Request for Applications, Qualifications, and Proposals section. It is the sole responsibility of all interested applicants to monitor the MDE website for updates regarding any amendments to the solicitations.

*Please note the applicant and entity must sign Form 5.

FORM 6 – VERIFICATION OF UEI

Verification of the registration of the <u>active</u> Unique Entity ID (UEI) must be submitted with the application(e.g., <u>www.sam.gov</u> correspondence indicating the status and expiration date, UEI letter, etc.)

BUDGET FORMS

Instructions for Budget Forms:

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS — Budget Forms have been pre-filled by MDE. Do not change or alter the forms. Districts should complete the indirect cost and total lines.

BUDGET SUMMARY (COMPLETED)

All Subgrantees will be provided a complete **Budget Form** to provide an EIR salary breakdown by the applicable budget categories shown in lines 1-5.

Please pay attention to applicable program specific instructions and allowable expenditures.

- 1. Itemized budget breakdown for each applicable budget category listed in the budget summary pages.
- 2. MDE provided the rate and base on which fringe benefits should be calculated.
- 3. The supporting EIR will receive an indirect cost rate of 5% that will be in effect during the funding period.
- 4. Districts/Entities must complete and identify the charge for the indirect cost rate to reimburse for processing identified grant activities, based on base salary and fringe totals.

Budget Forms

Mississippi Department of Education						
		BUDGET SUMN <i>Educator in Residence</i>		own		
Subgrantee must request funding for five years. Subgrantee requesting funding for multi-year grants should complete all applicable columns. Please read all instructions before completing form.						
Budget Categories	Year 1	Year 2:2025-2026	Year 3:202	6-2027	Year 4:2027-2028	Year 5:2028-2029
1. EIR Salary	75,000.00	75,000.00	75,000.00		75,000.00	75,000.00
2. Fringe Benefits	24,289.50.	24,289.50.	24,289.50.		24,289.50.	24,289.50.
3. Total Direct Costs (lines 1&2)	99,289.50	99,289.50	99,289.50		99,289.50	99,289.50
4. Indirect Costs (Negotiated Restricted Indirect Cost Rate)						
5. Total Cost (lines 3&4)						

REQUIRED ELEMENTS CHECKLIST

Submit packet in the order below:

- ✓ Cover Page (Form 1) Required Signature
- ✓ Signed Conflict of Interest (Form 2)—Required Signature
- ✓ Signed Assurances (Form 3) *Required Signature*
- ✓ Signed Standard Terms and Conditions (Form 4) Required Signatures
- ✓ Acknowledgement of Amendments (Form 5) *Required Signatures*
- ✓ Budget Form
- ✓ Application—Required Signature
- ✓ Resume
- ✓ Certification and Licenses
- ✓ References
- ✓ Verification of the registration of the active Unique Entity ID (UEI) must be submitted with the application (e.g., www.sam.gov correspondence indicating the status and expiration date, UEI letter, etc.) (Federal funds only, delete for State funds)